FAIR HOUSING TRAINING

The work that provided the basis for this presentation was supported by funding
under a grant with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.
The creator is solely responsible for the accuracy of the statements and
interpretations contained in this presentation. Such interpretations do not
necessarily reflect the views of the federal government.

WHO ARE WE?

IFHC is a nonprofit organization
whose mission is to ensure open and
inclusive housing for all people. The
IFHC’s purpose is to advance equal
access to housing for all persons
without regard to race, color, sex,
religion, national origin, familial status,
gender identity, sexual orientation,
source of income, or disability. The
IFHC attempts to eradicate
discrimination through education of
the fair housing laws, housing
information and referrals, housing
counseling and enforcement including
filing complaints under the Fair
Housing Act.

THE FAIR
HOUSING
ACT

1968

The Fair Housing Act is
initially passed in the wake
of the assassination of
Doctor Martin Luther King
Jr. identifying Race, Color,
Religion and National
Origin as the initial
protected classes.

1974

Sex is added as a
protected class

1988

Disability and Familial
Status are added as
protected classes

TITLE VIII OF THE
CIVIL RIGHTS ACT
Prohibits discrimination
in housing
Seven protected classes

Broadly Interpreted
Affirmatively Further
Fair Housing

FAIR HOUSING FOR ALL
EFFECTS US ALL

Where you live
impacts your life and others:

Where you live
impacts the community:

• What school your children go to • Diversity ensures a good place
for businesses to locate
• Your ease of access to work,
• Equitable access to housing
doctors, food, recreation, etc.
and basic needs such as food
• Physical dangers you and your
and health care promotes
loved ones may be exposed to
economic growth and welfare
for all

THE FOUR
JURISDICTIONAL
ELEMENTS
OF A FAIR HOUSING C ASE

1

Covered housing provider: a) 4 or more
units/property OR (b) a person/entity in
the business of housing

2

That a member of a protected class (or
someone associated with a person in a
protected class) was discriminated
against

3
4
https://www.loudounhabitat.org/blog/2019/4/22/fair-housing-act

A discriminatory act occurred because of
an individual’s protected class:
• During application or screening
• Denial of reasonable accommodation
• Different policies, charges, treatment

Within the Statute of Limitations

COVERED HOUSING
NOT AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST
• Condominiums
• Duplexes
• Multi-unit dwellings
(apartments)
• Manufactured homes
• Group homes for the
recovery from alcohol and
substance abuse
• Seasonal bungalows

Private homes
Vacant land
Homeless shelters
Shelters for victims of
domestic violence
• Hospice
• Nursing homes
• Assisted living
•
•
•
•

DIFFERENT HOUSING TRANSACTORS
NOT AN EXHAUSTIVE LIST
• Advertising media

• Refugee Agencies

• Residential landlords

• Banks, Savings and Loan
Associations, Mortgage
Lenders or other financial
institutions

• Rental agents
• Housing Agents/Managers

• Real Estate Brokers and
Salespersons
• Homebuilders

• Landowners
• Homeowners

• Home Owner and Condo
• Developers and contractors
Owner Associations

THE SEVEN
PROTECTED
CLASSES

1
2
3
4
5

6
7
https://www.nytimes.com/2019/08/20/upshot/housing-discrimination-algorithms-hud.html

Race
Color
Religion
National Origin
Sex (failure to comply with gender
stereotypes)
Disability
Familial Status

DISCRIMINATORY HOUSING
PRACTICES
Making Housing Unavailable

42 U.S.C. sec. 3604(a); examples at 24 CFR sec. 100.60

Discriminatory Terms and Conditions

42 U.S.C. sec. 3604(b); examples at 24 CFR sec. 100.65

Discriminatory Statements

42 U.S.C. sec. 3604(c); examples at 24 CFR sec. 100.75

Steering

42 U.S.C. sec. 3604(d); examples at 24 CFR sec. 100.80

Block Busting

42 U.S.C. sec. 3604(e)

Coercion and Intimidation
42 U.S.C. sec. 3617

MAKING
HOUSING
UNAVAILABLE

• Failing to accept a bona fide offer
• Refusing to negotiate with someone
• Imposing different sales prices or
rental charges
• Using different qualification criteria or
applications
• Evicting someone
• Conditioning availability on response
to harassment
• Harassing someone until they leave
• Using planning and zoning regulations
to prohibit certain uses based on a
protected class/classes

DISCRIMINATORY
TERMS AND
CONDITIONS

• Using different provisions in a
lease or contract of sale
• Failing to make repairs

• Failing to process an offer
• Limiting use of privileges and
facilities

• Tying services to sexual favors
• Conditioning services on
response to harassment

• Harassing people when they use
services

DISCRIMINATORY
STATEMENTS
• Words or pictures hinting or
implying a place is available or
unavailable to groups of people

• Being told a place is available or
unavailable to groups of people
• Different terms in advertising

STEERING
• Lying about availability
• Lying about conditions of
rental or sale
• Enforcing restrictive covenants
• Failing to offer available places

• Lying in response to harassment

BLOCK
BUSTING

Engaging, for profit, in conduct
(including uninvited solicitations
for listings) which conveys to a
person that a neighborhood is
undergoing or is about to
undergo a change in the race,
color, religion, sex, handicap,
familial status, or national origin
of persons residing in it, in order
to encourage the person to offer
a dwelling for sale or rental.

COERCION
AND
RETALIATION

It shall be unlawful to coerce,
intimidate, threaten, or interfere
with any person in the exercise or
enjoyment of, or on account of
that person having exercised
or encouraged any other person
in the exercise or enjoyment of,
any right granted or protected by
this part.

HANDLING DISCRIMINATORY
ENFORCEMENT CLAIMS

• Document everything at the time it
occurred—contemporaneous notes!
• If you get a complaint and you let it
slide, explain why in your notes
• If you get a complaint and you don’t let
it slide, explain why not in your notes
• If you get a complaint that someone
got away with something, reference your
notes

QUESTIONS?

COVID 19 AND THE FAIR HOUSING ACT

• Things to be aware of in these unique times

THE CURRENT LEGAL
LANDSC APE

1.

CARES Act

2.

State eviction protections

3.

How to self advocate in today’s world
1.

Landlord

2.

Tenant

WHAT IS
THE CARES
ACT?

CARES Act - The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (CARES) Act was passed by
Congress with overwhelming, bipartisan support and
signed into law by President Trump on March 27th,
2020. This over $2 trillion economic relief package
delivers on the Trump Administration’s commitment to
protecting the American people from the public health
and economic impacts of COVID-19. The CARES Act
provides fast and direct economic assistance for
American workers, families, and small businesses, and
preserve jobs for our American industries.
https://home.treasury.gov/policy-issues/cares

CARES AND EVICTIONS

CARES Act also included 120-day (4 month) federal eviction moratoriums for tenants in federally
supported properties. The federal moratoriums protect renters from eviction if they live in
properties that are federally insured, securitized or funded, but the country’s complicated housing
finance system makes it difficult for renters to know if they are protected, and some landlords
are continuing to evict despite the moratoriums.
How to find out if your housing is covered – Searchable table and map found at this website
https://nlihc.org/federal-moratoriums

EVICTION LAB

To better understand the steps states
have taken to prevent homelessness
during and after the pandemic, the
Eviction Lab and Columbia Law School’s
Professor Emily Benfer have developed a
policy scorecard for each state, distilling
the contents of thousands of newlyreleased emergency orders, declarations,
and legislation into a clear set of critical
measures included in, and left out of,
state-level pandemic responses related
to eviction and housing.
https://evictionlab.org/covid-policyscorecard/

BEING A FAIR HOUSING PARTNER

01

02

03

Keep in mind that the lack
of protections impact the
most vulnerable of our
population, which often
fall into one or more
protected classes

Try and be creative and
flexible in your
interactions with tenants

Consider COVID 19
when tenants ask for
reasonable
accommodations, which
we will discuss further
below.

COMMON ISSUES WE
ARE SEEING

• Individuals who had been able to stay home and
live independently with a disability have not
been able to do so due to lack of care –
caregivers are unable or unwilling to go into
homes, there is a shortage of caregivers, PPE,
etc. This has resulted in a higher number of
individuals placed in facilities, where they more
exposed to the dangers of COVID.
• Take away – work to keep an individual
housed in their home if at all possible.

RACE/NATIONAL
ORIGIN
HARASSMENT

• We have seen an increate in hate crimes and
harassment, particularly against Asians during
this time.
• Take away: Make sure you are on top of any
tenant on tenant harassment issues and take
seriously any allegations of harassment in your
housing.

• When it is difficult or impossible to show any
available units in person, make sure to consider
an individual’s access to other options and
ensure that all applicants have equal access

ACCESSIBILITY

• Take away – make sure you have various
options – not just Zoom for virtual tours, for
example. If individuals do not have access to
technology to access Zoom, their access to
your available housing is limited.

DISABILITY
GENERAL GUIDANCE
FROM IFHC

ADDITIONAL PROTECTIONS UNDER THE FAIR
HOUSING ACT FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH A
DISABILITY
• Design and Construction
• Reasonable
Accommodations
• Reasonable
Modifications

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

• Any multifamily housing built after March, 1991 MUST
comply with the Fair Housing Act’s design and
construction accessibility standards
• This means slopes of ramps, height of temperature
controls, turning radius in bathrooms and kitchen,
etc.

BUILDERS &
DEVELOPERS

Builders, brokers, realtors, and developers, among
others, must accommodate reasonable requests. Joint
Statement 2008 Pg. 15, explains in single family
dwellings a request for disability modification must be
accommodated by the builder while the cost of
such modifications remains with the buyer.

https://www.hud.gov/sites/documents/reasonable_modi
fications_mar08.pdf

REASONABLE
ACCOMMODATIONS

• Changes in rules,
policies, practices, or
services, that are
necessary because of
someone’s disability
• Housing provider bears
any costs involved

REASONABLE
MODIFICATIONS

• Changes to the premises
• Resident bears costs (unless the cost is low or the
housing is federally subsidized)
• Landlords can require tenant to remove interior
modifications upon leaving unless it benefits
everyone or was required to be constructed
accessibly

WHO IS DISABLED AS DEFINED
BY THE FAIR HOUSING ACT?
A person who (42 U.S.C. 3602 (h)(1)-(3)):
• has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits
one or more major life activities
• has a record of such impairment
• is regarded as having such an impairment
• broadly defined

DOJ-HUD JOINT STATEMENT

Reasonable Accommodations Under the Fair Housing Act, May 17, 2004
https://www.justice.gov/crt/us-department-housing-and-urban-development
Includes examples
A federal agency’s interpretation of its own regulations is given great weight

WHEN CAN YOU TURN DOWN A
REQUEST?
ACCOMMODATIONS

MODIFICATIONS

• The person doesn’t have a disability

• The person doesn’t have a disability

• The accommodation they’re asking for isn’t related to
their disability

• The modification they’re asking for
isn’t related to their disability

• They’re asking you to act as a service provider
• It’s unreasonable, considering
• Cost of accommodation

• Housing provider’s resources
• Benefits of accommodation
• Availability of other accommodations

• The person didn’t get required
permits or did a shoddy job

DON’T JUST SAY NO!

• Housing providers are
required to have an interactive
process: if you can’t give them
what they initially ask for, ask if
there are other
accommodations or
modifications that might work

COMMONLY REQUESTED
ACCOMMODATIONS

• Additional time to move out for people with mobility impairments
• Waive a “no cosigners” rule for someone whose only source of income is disability

• Assigned parking spaces for people with parking cards
• Overlook a previous eviction or arrest if they happened during a period of untreated
mental illness if the individual taken steps to eliminate the previous threat:
• If individual has received intervening treatment of medication

• Allow a group home for people with disabilities to operate in a neighborhood that tries to
prohibit them
• And, of course, animals.

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS &
COVID 19

COVID 19 MAY be considered a disability and thus, housing providers should
consider granting RAs related to COVID:
--additional time to find affordable, accessible housing
--additional time for whatever is needed if the individual has COVID – an
extension on time to find housing, an extension on eviction procedures, an
accommodation in the manner rent is paid, etc.
**NOTE: HUD has not yet decided this issue

ASSISTANCE ANIMALS

ASSISTANCE
ANIMALS

E MOT I ONAL SUPPORT, ASSI ST I V E ,
COMPANI ON, T H E R AP Y ANI MAL ,
E T CE T ERA…

Under the Fair Housing Act, there is
no distinction between any of these
different types of animals when the
animal is necessary for a person with a
disability as a reasonable accommodation to
have equal access/equal opportunity to
housing

There is no distinction
between any of these
different types of animals
when an individual requests
that they be permitted to
have one as a reasonable
accommodation in housing.
Courts have repeatedly
held that assistance animals
are service animals and
must be considered as
reasonable
accommodations for
disabled individuals.

HUD 2020
GUIDANCE

Purpose of the 2020 Guidance is to clarify (not
change) HUD’s analysis, to help folks
understand how HUD interprets situations
involving Assistance Animals, particularly as it
pertains to who can verify the disability AND
disability related need and types of animals,
including unique animals.

https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/PA/documen
ts/HUDAsstAnimalNC1-28-2020.pdf

• Supersedes HUD’’s prior 2013 Guidance
• 60% of all FHA complaints concern denial of
reasonable accommodations

OF NOTE IN HUD’S GUIDE

• Complaints regarding denials of assistance
animals are one of the most common types
of fair housing complaints that HUD
receives.

• Most HUD charges of discrimination against
a housing provider following a full
investigation involve the denial of a
reasonable accommodation to a person who
has a physical or mental disability that the
housing provider cannot readily observe.

• If the disability is obvious, and the nexus
between the reasonable accommodation
request and disability is obvious, no
verification is necessary.

VERIFYING DISABILITY

• If the nexus is not obvious, landlord can
request third party verification from the
applicant that they do have a disability
(without inquiring into the nature and
severity of the disability) and the nexus
between the disability and the reasonable
accommodation.

Information About Disability May Include . . .

• A determination of disability from a federal, state,
or local government agency.

PROOF OF DISABILIT Y

• Receipt of disability benefits or services (Social
Security Disability Income (SSDI)), Medicare or
Supplemental Security Income (SSI) for a person
under age 65, veterans’ disability benefits, services
from a vocational rehabilitation agency, or disability
benefits or services from another federal, state, or
local agency.
• Eligibility for housing assistance or a housing
voucher received because of disability.
• Information confirming disability from a health
care professional – e.g., physician, optometrist,
psychiatrist, psychologist, physician’s assistant, nurse
practitioner, or nurse.

Note that a determination that an individual does
not qualify as having a disability for purposes of a
benefit or other program does not necessarily mean
the individual does not have a disability for purposes
of the FHA, Section 504, or the ADA

SERVICE OR ASSISTANCE*
ANIMALS
*emotional support, assistive, companion, therapy, etc

Service Animals

Assistance* Animals

• Rules apply to public spaces
under Americans with
Disabilities Act

• Rules apply to homes under
the Fair Housing Act

• Must be dog or
miniature horse
• Must be trained (either at
home or professionally) to do
something that an ordinary
animal can’t do

• No species, breed, age
restrictions
• Can be more than one
• Don’t need more training than
an ordinary animal

SERVICE OR ASSISTANCE*
ANIMALS
*emotional support, assistive, companion, therapy, etc

• Can’t charge a deposit/pet rent • Can’t require the proof of need
to come from a particular
• Can’t restrict species, breed,
provider
size, or age
• Can’t treat people with
disabilities differently or worse
— meaning don’t use black
• Can’t call the proof of need provider
lighting, DNA testing, roommate
• Can’t put a cap on the number
vetoes, inspections, carpet
of animals (we know two birds
cleaning fees — to single out
and two cats are OK); case-bypeople with disabilities because
case basis
of their assistance animals.
• Can’t put unreasonable
restrictions on the animal

ANIMALS AS TREATMENT

Research shows benefits for
people with PTSD, anxiety,
diabetes, and other
disabilities

Assistance dog for Marine veteran

ASSISTANCE ANIMAL NO-NOS
• Don’t charge a deposit or pet rent (remember, no fees for
accommodations)
• Don’t restrict species, breed, size, or age
• Don’t put unreasonable restrictions on the animal
• Don’t require the proof of need to come from a particular
provider
• Don’t call the proof of need provider
• Don’t put an unreasonably small cap on the number of
animals (we know two birds and two cats are OK); case-bycase basis
• Don’t treat people with disabilities differently or worse —
meaning don’t use black lighting, DNA testing, roommate
vetoes, inspections, carpet cleaning fees—to single out people
with disabilities because of their assistance animals.

Assistance lizards: every bit as valid
as assistance dogs

DOCUMENTATION FROM THE INTERNET
Some websites sell certificates, registrations, and licensing documents for assistance
animals to anyone who answers certain questions or participates in a short
interview and pays a fee. Under the Fair Housing Act, a housing provider may
request reliable documentation when an individual requesting a reasonable
accommodation has a disability and disability-related need for an accommodation
that are not obvious or otherwise known.35 In HUD’s experience, such
documentation from the internet is not, by itself, sufficient to reliably establish that
an individual has a non-observable disability or disability-related need for an
assistance animal. By contrast, many legitimate, licensed health care professionals
deliver services remotely, including over the internet. One reliable form of
documentation is a note from a person’s health care professional that confirms a
person’s disability and/or need for an animal when the provider has personal
knowledge of the individual.

• Fair Housing of the Dakotas v. Goldmark Property
Management, Inc., 778 F. Supp.2d 1028, 1036 (D.N.D.
2011)
• There is no per se training requirement for
service animals and the FHA protects the right to
have all types of service animals
REASONABLE
A C C O M M O DAT I O N
CASES

• Assoc. of Apartment Owners of Liliuokalani Gardens at
Waikiki v. Taylor, 892 F.Supp.2d 1268 (D. Haw. 2012)
• Courts have held that some individuals requesting
to have a service animal as a reasonable
accommodation in housing may have a disability
that requires a service animal to have some type
of training and that in other cases no training is
necessary
• Inquiry focuses on individual requesting the
reasonable accommodation and the
accommodation necessary to ameliorate the
effects of the disability

REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION CASES
• Overlook Mutual Homes, Inc. v. Spencer, 666 F.Supp.2d 850, 861 (S.D. Ohio 2009)

• Service animals which are for emotional support to ameliorate the effects of a
mental or emotional disability need not be individually trained
• Intermountain Fair Housing Council v. CVE Falls Park, L.L.C., 2:10-cv-00346-BLW (D. Idaho
2011)
• A housing provider that imposes a deposit on a service animal is in violation of the
FHA
• 24 C.F.R. 100.65(b)(1) – a housing provider may not require different rent or
impose a security deposit or other lease terms because of an individual’s disability

ASSISTANCE ANIMAL OKS

• It’s OK to bill someone for
damages caused by an animal
• It’s OK to require the resident
to have a plan for dealing with
animal waste
• It’s OK to require an animal to
be well-behaved

…they don’t have to be this well-behaved, though

MAY A PROVIDER
IMPOSE RESTRICTIONS?
• A housing provider may not impose blanket breed,
size or weight restrictions on assistance animals (even
when there is a municipal ordinance banning a breed)
• A housing provider must approve an assistance animal
as a reasonable accommodation if keeping the
particular animal is “feasible” and “practical”
• A reasonable accommodation request can be denied if
the specific animal poses a direct threat to the health
or safety of others that cannot be reduced or
eliminated by another reasonable accommodation or
if the specific animal would cause substantial physical
damage to the property or others that cannot be
reduced or eliminated by another reasonable
accommodation

MAY A PROVIDER RESTRICT
WHERE AN ESA MAY BE PRESENT
• An individual with a disability who has an assistance
animal can take the animal in all areas of the premises
where persons are normally allowed to go unless
doing so would impose an undue financial and
administrative burden or would fundamentally alter
the nature of the housing provider’s services

• Cannot prohibit individual with disability from taking
assistance animal into the common areas of the
property

HOUSING PROVIDERS SHOULD…

Assist the person requesting the accommodation to understand what
information the housing provider is seeking.
Housing providers are encouraged to direct the requester to the
Guidance on Documenting an Individual’s Need for Assistance Animals in
Housing. Referring the requester to that Guidance will also help ensure
that the housing provider receives the disability-related information that
is actually needed to make a reasonable accommodation decision.

UNIQUE ANIMALS

If the individual is requesting to keep a unique type of animal that is not
commonly kept in households (dog, cat, small bird, rabbit, hamster, gerbil, other
rodent, fish, turtle, or other small, domesticated animal) then the requestor has
the substantial burden of demonstrating a disability-related therapeutic need for
the specific animal or the specific type of animal. The individual is encouraged to
submit documentation from a health care professional confirming the need for
this animal, which includes information of the type set out in the Guidance on
Documenting an Individual’s Need for Assistance Animals in Housing.

BEST PRACTICES

• We are not their doctor or counselor
• Doctors and counselors know their patients
• Doctors and counselors get to decide whether particular
patients need particular animals not us
• If visitors/guests need assistance animals, they get to visit
• Don’t dilly-dally, outright say no, or ignore
• Engage in an interactive dialogue
• Document, document

EDUCATION

• Education and training truly are the best way for housing providers, consumers and
advocates to understand reasonable accommodations.
• Fair housing education and training may prevent costly fair housing violations.
• The cost of discrimination in fair housing cases is high and may lead to loss of much
needed community planning and development funds and or huge damage awards.

WHERE WE CAN HELP YOU

• Fighting discrimination by buyers, sellers, landlords,
HOAs, cities, insurance companies, and neighbors

• Sample forms and position statements
• Resources on building housing for people at all
levels of income
• Preventing and alleviating homelessness

• Promoting new and inclusive housing
• Providing training opportunities for landlords,
property managers, government agencies,
homeowners’ associations, real estate agents, and
residents

Intermountain Fair Housing Council
Concilio de Vivienda Justa
4696 W Overland Rd, Ste 140
Boise, ID 83705
Phone: 208-383-0695
Fax: 208-383-0715
contact@ifhcidaho.org

QUESTIONS?

